Pocono Township BOC Agenda September 15, 2025

POCONO TOWNSHIP COMMISSIONERS
AGENDA
September 15, 2025 | 6:00 p.m.

205 Old Mill Rd, Suite 2, Tannersville, PA
Zoom Participation
https://lus06web.zoom.us/s/85302089478

Meeting ID:
853 0208 9478
Passcode:
776946
Open Meeting
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call
Annoncements

Executive session was held prior to the meeting to discuss litigation Pocono Township vs Brown

Public Comment-NON-AGENDA ITEMS

Limited to 3 minutes per person, please state your name and if you are a Pocono Township Resident.

Presentations
Tannersville Point Apartments — Waivers Presentation (Possible Action Item)
Hearings -

Resolutions

Motion to Approve Resolution 2025-33 granting conditional approval of The Tannersville Point
Apartments LDP 1358 (Possible Action Item)

Consent Agenda

= Motion to approve a consent agenda of the following items:

o0 Old business consisting of the minutes of the September 2, 2025 regular meeting of the
Board of Commissioners.

o0 Financial transactions through September 15, 2025 as presented, including ratification of
expenditures in the amount of $578,538.14 for the following accounts: General Fund, Sewer
Operations, Gross Payroll, Capital Reserve, Construction Fund, Transfers. Discussion:
(Action Items)


https://us06web.zoom.us/s/85302089478

Pocono Township BOC Agenda September 15, 2025

NEW BUSINESS

Personnel
= Motion to approve a raise for Regina Zuvich of 4% for 8-16-2025 (Possible Action Item)

Report of the President

Richard Wielebinski

= Motion to accept and Execute the Civil Service Bylaws (Rules & Regulations) as presented.
(Possible Action Item)

= Motion to waive Clear Run Intermediate School (PMSD) pavilion fees for 10/9 (Possible Action
Item)

= Motion to proceed with dangerous structure inspection for parcel 12.8.1.85 (Possible Action Item)

= Motion to deny Summit Road Solar Array (Bluewave Solar) LDP 1439 due to lack of response and
the comment letters from Zoning and the Township Engineer. (Possible Action Item)

Commissioner Comments

Natasha Leap — Vice President
Ellen Gnandt — Commissioner

= Update — Solar Field

= Update — Kennel

= Motion to postpone the TASA plan until all commissioners are brought up to speed and project costs,
and grants are reviewed. (Possible Action Item)

= Motion to send out letters to affected businesses to set up work session to present the plan to them
for feedback. (Potential action item)

= Motion to schedule and advertise food truck ordinance hearing. (Potential action item)

Brian Winot — Commissioner

= Motion to present Pocono Manor Historical Overlay district to the Planning Commission & Monroe
County Planning Commission for approval. (Possible Action Item)

= Motion to have Township Solicitor draw up resolution to prohibit truck traffic on Back Mountain Rd &
Brookdale , for safety reasons. (Possible Action Item)

Mike Velardi — Commissioner

= Tent City Update

Reports

Zoning — SFM Consulting

Police — Chief James Wagner (First Meeting of Month)

Township Manager’s Report — Jerrod Belvin

PSATS update

Police Wing Update

PennDOT Update, Cherry Lane & 715 project
ACT 101 Update



Pocono Township BOC Agenda September 15, 2025

Public Works/Sewer Report — Patrick Briegel

Sewer Business Update

PennDOT / Intersection brush update

MCTI & Sullivan Trail Expansions

Current Public Works Projects

Motion to move forward with the Easement for utilities at 205 Old Mill Road project. (Possible Action
Item)

Motion to move forward withthe Municipal Complex Sewer Easement. (Possible Action Item)

Township Events Report — Jennifer Gambino (First Meeting of Month)

Township Engineer Report — T&M Associates

Sewer Business Update

Learn Road safety enhancement project and roundabout survey work.
TASA Project

TLC walking bridge.

Turkey Hill/lWendys Sidewalk update

Stadden Rd signage & curve painting

Township Solicitor Report — Broughal & DeVito, L.L.P.

Sewer Business Update

General legal update

Motion to proceed with Solicitor obtaining an administrative warrant to remove a dangerous structure
located at 268 Laurel Lake Road. (Possible Action Item)

Motion to authorize Solicitor and Zoning to move forward with the District Magistrate regarding
dangerous structure fines on 2914 Bartonsville Ave. (Possible Action Item)

Update — Archer Lane

Learn Road Easement Process

TASA Sidewalk Update — Easements

Adjournment




























































Tannersville Point Apartments CW 23-003
Warner Road, Tannersville, PA September 4, 2024
Waiver Request Letter

Waiver: Asphalt paving is proposed with the driveway in place of a concrete apron for
durability and consistency within the driveway. Painted crosswalks are provided for
pedestrian crosswalk visibility, where applicable.

4, Section 390-50.D.(4): [Stormwater Basin Depth] The maximum water depth, measured
from the invert of the lowest outlet orifice to the peak one-hundred-year water surface
elevation, shall not exceed five feet.

Waiver: The stormwater control (rate and volume) facility is designed as a modular
concrete vault underground and has a depth of 9.32 feet, as defined. However, this facility
will be underground and inaccessible to the residents of the community and public.

5 Section 220-8.C.: [Limit of Slopes] Edges of newly created slopes shall be a minimum
of five feet from property lines, ultimate/future right-of-way lines of streets and easements
to permit the normal rounding of the edge without encroachment on the abutting
property, right-of-way, or easement.

Waiver: The graded slopes along the frontage of the property and where the stormwater
discharge pipe tie into the neighboring parcel are graded up to the right-of-way/property
line and beyond for adequate grading tie-ins.

6. Section 365-8.L.: [Connection of Roof Leaders] Rains Roof drains and sump pumps
shall discharge to infiltration or vegetative BMPs wherever feasible. Roof drains should
not be connected to streets, sanitary or storm sewers or roadside ditches in order to
promote overland flow and infiltration/percolation of stormwater. Considering potential
pollutant loading, roof drain runoff in most cases will not require pretreatment.

Waiver: Roof drains are connected directly to the underground stormwater collection
system to avoid surface flow over paved sidewalks, driveways and parking areas to avoid
icing during the cold weather months.

7. Section 365-13.B.: [Stormwater Calculations] All calculations consistent with this
Chapter using the soil cover complex method shall use the appropriate design rainfall
depths for the various return period storms according to the region in which they are
located as presented in Table B-1 in Appendix A" of this Chapter. If a hydrologic computer
model such as PRSM or HEC-1 is used for stormwater runoff calculations, then the duration
of rainfall shall be 24 hours. The NRCS “S” curve shown in Figure B-1, Appendix A of this
Chapter, shall be used for the rainfall distribution.

Waiver: The Stormwater Management Report utilizes rainfall values from NOAA Atlas 14,
Volume 2, Version 3, location Tannersville, PA for consistency.

Page 2 of 4












5. SALDO Section 390-48.T.(14): Concrete Aprons. The applicant shall be permitted to
use asphalt in lieu of the required concrete apron.

6. SALDO Section 390-48.AA: Sidewalks. The applicant is granted a deferral from
installing sidewalk from the entrance drive to I-80. The applicant shall install sidewalk
from the pump station driveway to the property line to the east.

7. SALDO Sections 390-50.D.(3): Side Slopes. The applicant shall not be required to have
its basin conform to the natural topography, due to it being an underground modular
concrete structure which is completely out of sight.

8. SALDO Sections 390-50.D.(4): Water Depth. The applicant shall be permitted to have
the underground basin depth be 9.32 feet, exceeding the ordinance limitation of 5 feet.

9. SALDO Sections 390-50.CC: Pipes. The applicant shall be permitted to have certain
storm sewer pipes with a diameter of 12-inches as shown on the Plan.

That the following requests for waiver from the Brodhead/McMichael Creek Stormwater
Management Ordinance are hereby granted:

1. SMO Section 365-8.L.: “Roof drains should not be connected to streets, sanitary or storm
sewers, or roadside ditches in order to promote overland flow and infiltration/percolation
of stormwater.” Applicant proposes to have all roof drains connect to the storm sewer.

2 SMO Section 365-13.B.: Design Criteria for Rainfall Data. The applicant is proposing to
utilize the NOAA Atlas 14 rainfall data as part of the stormwater management analysis.

That the following request for waiver from the Grading, Erosion and Sedimentation Ordinance is
hereby granted:

L. Section 220-8.C: “Edges of newly created slopes shall be a minimum of five feet from
property lines, ultimate/future right-of-way lines of streets, and easements to permit the
normal rounding of the edge without encroachment on the abutting property, right-of-
way, or easement.” Applicant shall be permitted to grade up to and beyond property
lines, conditioned upon the applicant obtaining a temporary construction easement from
the adjacent property owner for the proposed grading work.

That the “Tannersville Point Apartments, Lot Line Adjustment and Land Development
Plan” as shown on the preliminary/final plan prepared by Keystone Consulting Engineers, dated
May 24, 2024, as revised, be hereby approved with the following conditions and provided the
plan is revised as follows, subject to the review and approval of the Township Engineer and/or
Township Solicitor:

1. The applicant shall comply with all of the conditions and requirements identified in the
Township Engineer’s letters dated July 3, 2024, October 22, 2024, April 9, 2025 and June 9,
2025.



The applicant shall withdraw its prior plan submission titled “Tannersville Pointe
Apartments, Lot Improvement and Land Development, Warner Road (SR 4012),
Pocono Township, Pennsylvania” prepared by E.P. Mancinelli & Associates Consulting
Engineers, dated September 17, 2018, prior to Plan recordation.

3. The applicant shall enter into an Improvements Agreement with the Township and provide
appropriate security, if deemed necessary by the Township.

4. The applicant shall enter into a Maintenance Agreement with the Township and provide
appropriate security, if deemed necessary by the Township.

5. The applicant shall enter into a Stormwater Management and Maintenance Agreement with the
Township, if deemed necessary by the Township.

6. The applicant shall pay all necessary fees associated with the Plan, including, but not limited
to,a $ fee-in-lieu of open space, any outstanding plan account charges
and all professional services fees, prior to the recording of the Plan.

7. The applicant shall obtain all required permits and approvals from other governmental and
regulatory agencies prior to presenting the Plan for signatures.

8. The applicant shall provide the requisite number of plans which are signed and notarized by
the owner and sealed by the engineer.

9. The applicant shall meet all conditions of the preliminary/final plan approval, and Plan shall
be recorded within twelve (12) months of Conditional Preliminary/Final Plan approval, and
agrees that if such conditions are not met, the Conditional Preliminary/Final Plan approval
will be considered void.

10. The applicant shall accept these conditions in writing within five (5) days of receipt of the
Board of Commissioners Resolution, otherwise the Plan is denied.

RESOLVED at a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the

Township of Pocono the day of , 2025.

ATTEST: Township of Pocono

Board of Commissioners
By: By:
Print Name: Jerrod Belvin Print Name: Richard Wielebinski

Title: Township Manager Title: President







































member of the Civil Service Commission.

H.  Disciplining Authority. The Chief of Police, or the Board of Commissioners, as
applicable, which imposes a disciplinary penalty upon a police officer pursuant to the Police
Department Rules and Regulations.

L Eligible. A person whose name is recorded on a current cligibility list or furlough
list.

J. Eligibility List. The list of names of persons who have passed all examinations for a
position as a police officer and who are listed in the order of their total score on the examinations.

K. Examinations. The series of tests given to Applicants to determine their qualifications
for a position as a police officer.

L Furlough List. The list of names of police officers, including their last position,
temporarily laid off from positions in the Police Department because of a reduction in the number
of officers.

M. Notice. "Notice" shall wherever feasible be accomplished by the transmittal of
clectronic mailing (i.c. c-mail). It is the intention of Pocono Township, Monroe County,to utilize
electronic mailing whenever possible or feasible. Certain limited exceptions to the above form of
notice will be found in the present rules:

1 Where "public notice" is required, such notice will be pursued in compliance with
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania public statutory mandates. This may require
advertising, or posting of notice.

iL. Transmittal of documentation between the Board of Commissioners and the
Commission and other municipal departments such as the Police Department
may be accomplished at the convenience of these Township authorities, who
may find it more appropriate to hand deliver notices that are required. Nothing
herein shall preclude these departments from utilizing electronic mail.

il [t is the responsibility of an Applicant who becomes the recipient of electronic
mailing of notices by the Township to ensure that the email address used by the
Applicant protects the Applicant's privacy. Sensitive data will be transmitted to
the Applicant by electronic mailing, and the Township maintains no
responsibility for the interception of such electronic mailing by third parties.

V. [t 1s the responsibility of the Applicant to maintain a current electronic mailing
address, and to advise the Township in a timely manner of any change to such an
address. If the Township or the Commission experiences an inability to transmit
an clectronic mailing to an Applicant, the Township and the Commission maintain
no obligation to attempt to ascertain the new and current electronic mailing
address of a recipient Applicant.

V. Any cmail transmission initiated from the Township to the Applicant must be
4












3.07 Governmental Assistance.

A Clerks and Supplies. The Board of Commissioners shall furnish to the Commission
such clerical assistance, suitable and convenient meeting space, and stationery, postage, printing, and
supplies as may be necessary for the work of the Commission. The clected and appointed officials
of the Township shall assist the Commission in all proper ways in carrying out its duties.

B. Professionals. Consultants and Experts. The Commission shall have the right to retain
and employ the services of legal counsel, physicians, psychiatrists, and such other consultants,
experts and professionals as may be necessary for the work of the Commission; provided,
nevertheless, that such retention and employment shall be subject to the prior approval of the Board
of Commissioncrs. The Board of Commissioners shall pay the reasonable fees for such persons.

3.08 Amendment of Rules and Regulations.

The Commission may amend, revise, void or replace these Rules and Regulations for
any reason by action of a majority of the Commission at any properly convened mecting of the
Commission. Before any changes to these Rules and Regulations become effective, those
changes must be approved by the Board of Commissioners. These Rules and Regulations, and
any amendments hereto. shall be made available to the public for inspection, copying, and
distribution as provided by law. This availability shall take two forms:

A Where feasible, the rules and regulations may be "posted" on the
Township website.

B Members of the public may also request written "hard" copics of the rules
and regulations, which shall be provided by the Township.

3.09 Minutes and Records.

The Secretary shall keep minutes of the proceedings of the Commission. The minutes
shall record the presence or absence of each member of the Commission, and the vote (including
the abstention or other failure to vote) of each member upon each question before the
Commission. The Commission shall preserve and dispose of the minutes of its
proceedings, and records of examinations and other official action, in accordance with the
Retention and Disposition Schedule for Records of Pennsylvania Municipalities issued pursuant
to the requirements of the Pennsylvania Municipal Records Act, 53 Pa. C.S.A. § 1381 et .

s e q . and Title 46, Part I, Chapter 15 of the Pennsylvania Code, as administered by the Local
Government Records Committee of the Historical and Museum Commission, Division of
Archival and Records Management Services.

Records related to any disciplinary action reviewed by the Commission shall be open to
inspection, copying and distribution as required by law and subject to reasonable regulation by
the Commission. Distribution of such data shall be in compliance with the Pennsylvania
"Sunshine Act", and the provisions of the “Right to Know” Act thereby assuring that privacy

8



where applicable shall be maintained.

3.10 Investigations.

The Commission shall have the power to make investigations concerning all matters relating
to the administration and enforcement of these Rules and Regulations. The Chairperson of the
Commission is authorized to administer oaths and affirmations in connection with such
investigations.

3.11 Subpoenas.

The Commission shall have the power to issue subpoenas over the signature of the
Chairperson, or the Civil Service Commission designee, to require the attendance of witnesses and
the production of records and papers pertaining to any investigation, inquiry, or matter pending
before the Commission, including any background investigation conducted pursuant to these Rules
and Regulations. The fees of such witnesses for attendance and travel shall be the same as for
witnesses appearing in the Court of Common Pleas of Monroe County, Pennsylvania, and shall be
paid from appropriations for the incidental expenses of the Commission.

All officers in public service and employees of the Township shall attend Commission
proceedings and testify when required to do so by the Commission.

[f any person shall refuse or neglect to obey a subpoena, the Commission may apply by
petition to the Court of Common Pleas of Monroc County, Pennsylvania for enforcement of its
subpoena requiring the attendance of such persons before the Commission or the Court, there to
testify and to produce any records and papers necessary, and in default thereof, the subpoenaed party
shall be held in contempt ofcourt.

The costs incurred by the Commission or the person who has secured issuance of a subpoena
as a result of the refusal or neglect of any person to obey a subpocena issued by the Commission or
the Court, including but not limited to additional witness fees, stenographic fees, and legal fees
incurred in obtaining compliance with the subpoena, shall be borne by such person or entity found
to be in noncompliance.

3.12 Annual Report.

The Commission shall make an annual report to the Board of Commissioners containing a
brief summary of its work during the year and a full accounting for any expenditures of public
monies. The annual report shall be available for public inspection.















The Board of Commissioners retains full authority to fill any vacancy in the position of Chief
of Police. The Board of Commissioners may elect to have the Civil Service Commission evaluate
and recommend a Chief of Police candidate via either competitive or non-competitive examination.

6.10 Rejection of Applicant.

The Commission may refuse to examine, or, if examined, may refuse to certify as eligible
after examination, any Applicant who is found to lack any of the minimum qualifications for
examination prescribed in these Rules and Regulations for the particular position for which the
Applicant has applied. In addition, the Commission may refuse to examine, or, if examined, may
refuse to certify any Applicant who is physically or mentally unfit to perform the full duties of the
position applied for, or who is a habitual substance abuser, or who has been found guilty of any
crime involving moral turpitude, or has engaged in infamous or notoriously disgraceful conduct as
determined by the Commission, or who has been dismissed from public service for delinquency or
misconduct in office, or who is affiliated with any group whose policies or activities are subversive
to the form of government set forth in the constitutions and laws of the United States and the
Commonwecalth of Pennsylvania.

The Commission may reject any Applicant where any of the following are found to exist:

a. The submission of false or misleading statements, either written or oral, to the Township or
its representative(s), or the failure to submit any information which if known, might affect
consideration for employment.

b. The existence of financial difficulty or debt, either individually or in connection with another
third party or entity, that could in the opinion of the Commission adversely impact
employment as a police officer.

c¢. Conviction of a misdemeanor or felony, or being named as a criminal defendant in a pending
criminal action rising to the level of a misdemeanor or felony, which conviction has not been
resolved to the satisfaction of the Commission.

d. A finding of illegal drug or illegal substance use during the last five years immediately prior
to submission of an application; or a finding of alcohol, drug or other form of dependency
that, as determined by the Commission, could compromise or adversely impact the
Applicant’s ability to perform the duties of a patrol officer.

e. Aninability to pass the requisite written, physical, oral, psychological or other tests required
by the Township, including weapons proficiency and ultimate Act 120 certification.

f. A history of use of inappropriate force or aggression as determined by the Township, the
Commission, or its representative(s).

g A failure to obtain, prior to hiring, citizenship status, a Pennsylvania driver’s license,
noncompliance with the police manual residency requirement, or other disclosed or
undisclosed inability toengage in the duties of a Pocono Township police officer.

14






@ An oral interview consisting of up to five interviewers designated by the Chief of
Police, which may include the Township Manager or a Board of Commissioners designee.
Nothing herein shall preclude a second oral examination to be conducted by Township
interviewers as approved by the Civil Service Commission. No score shall be awarded during the
second oral examination which is undertaken to give representatives of the Township the
opportunity to become acquainted with the patrol officer candidates.

®) A background investigation in accordance with Rule 7.08 below, which shall
include an interview with the Chief of Police (a pass-fail examination); and a polygraph
examination if requested by the Chief of Police.

The following examinations will be administered by the Commission or its designated
agents, in such order as the Commission may determine, to an Applicant subsequent to a conditional
offer of employment or promotion by the Board of Commissioners:

©) Mecdical examination (a pass-fail examination).
@ Psychological examination (a pass-failexamination).
®) Drug testing examination (a pass-fail examination).

No Applicant will ultimately be employed or promoted by the Board of Commissioners until
and unless the Applicant passes the medical, psychological, and drug testing examinations.

All examinations shall be practical in character and shall relate to such matters and include
such inquiries as will fairly test the merit and fitness of the persons examined to discharge the dutics
of the employment sought by them.

All examinations will be scheduled by the Civil Service Commission and the Board of
Commissioners, as applicable. There will be no exceptions to this schedule and no requests for
reexamination will be granted.

Within thirty (30) days after the administration of each examination, each Applicant shall

be given clectronic notice of the examination results, and cach passing Applicant shall be given
electronic notice of the next step in the examination process.

7.02 General Examination Requirements for the Position of Patrol Officer.

The examinations for the position of patrol officer shall consist of all eight (8)
examinations, interviews, and/or investigations as specified in Rule 7.01 above.

703 General Examination Requirements for Promotions.

The examination for the positions of Corporal, Sergeant, and Captain and, when requested
by the Board of Commissioners for the position of Chief of Police, shall consist of examination

16









After the background investigation is completed, the Chief of Police, or his or her designee,
shall make a written recommendation to the Commission on whether the Applicant is qualified for
consideration for appointment as a police officer. If the recommendation is to disqualify the
Applicant, an explanation of the reasons for disqualification must be included. The Commission
shall make the final determination on whether the information collected during the background
mvestigation warrants disqualification of the Applicant. Within thirty (30) days after the Commission
makes its determination, the Applicant shall be notified by electronic mailing whether he or she has
passed the background investigation.

7.09 Yeteran's Preference Points in Testing.

Pursuant to Section 3(a) of the Veterans' Preference Act, 51 Pa. C.S. 7103 (a), any Applicant
for the position of patrol officer who qualifics as a "soldier" under this Act and who has received
passing scores on both the written and oral examinations shall have ten (10) points added to his or
her combined, weighted written and oral examination score. Any Applicant claiming veteran’s
preference is responsible for providing to the Commission any and all documents required to
establish entitlement to the preference. See also Rule 8.04 below.

SECTION 8. CERTIFICATION OF LIST OF ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS AND
APPOINTMENT.

8.01 Creation of Elicibility List.

Upon the completion of the examination requirements as set forth in Section 7 above,
the Commission shall rank all passing Applicants on an cligibility list in the order of scores
achicved with the Applicant recciving the highest score at the top of the list and the
Applicant receiving the lowest passing score at the bottom of the list. Applicants for the
position of patrol officer who qualify for veterans’ preference points shall have those points
added to their passing score prior to being ranked on the eligibility list. For any promotional
position, fulfilling the performance requirement (relating to disciplinary action) set forth in
Rule 6.01 above is also required. In the case of tic scores, the tic will be broken by giving
preference to the Applicant who submitted a final completed application first.

The cligibility list will be valid for one year from the last date by which the Commission
formally adopts the cligibility list. Prior to the expiration of the onc-ycar period, the
Commission may. at its sole discretion, by a vote of the majority of the Commission at duly
authorized commission meetings, extend the list for up to an additional twelve months,
unless directed by the Board of Commissioners to prepare a new list. In the absence of a
lawful extension by the Commission, the list shall expire. The Commission may., at its sole
discretion, void an eligibility list at any time for any reason.

19



8.02 Appointment.

A The Board of Commissioners may fill any vacancy in any position as a police officer that
occurs as a result of expansion of the Police Department, retirement, resignation, disability or death
by the reappointment or reinstatement of a former police officer of the Township who had
been appointed pursuant to the civil service requirements, and previously held the vacant
position. Except for medical and psychological examinations, no other testing shall be required
for a reappointed or reinstated police officer except at the discretion of the Board of
Commissioners or as otherwise required by law. Such former police officer shall comply with the
recertification requirements of the Municipal Police Officer’s Education and Training Act, Act of
December 19, 1996, P.L. 1158, No. 177, as amended, 53 Pa.C.S.A. § 2161, ct seq.

B. Il no furlough list exists or if any position remains to be filled after all of the cligible
former police officers on the furlough list have been offered reemployment, every position,
except that of chief of police, shall be filled only in the following manner:

[. The Board of Commissioners shall notify the Commission of any vacancy which is
to be filled and shall request certification from the Commission of the names of the highest ranking
three (3) persons on the list of eligible candidates. In the event there is more than one vacancy to fill,
the Board of Commissioners shall request certification of that number of names necessary to fill the
vacancies, plus two, in the order of their rank on the eligibility list.

2. The Commission shall certify to the Board of Commissioners a list of the names of
the requested number of highest ranking persons on the list of eligible candidates. If there are fewer
names on the list of cligible candidates than necessary to satisfy the request, the Commission shall
certify the names of those persons on the list of eligible candidates though less than that requested,
and shall advise the Boardof Commissioners that there are fewer names than requested.

3. The Board of Commissioners shall make a conditional appointment from the three
(3) highest ranking names on the certified list for each vacancy, predicated upon the merits and fitness
of the Applicants. A model form of notice to a person conditionally appointed is attached in the
Appendix. If the number of persons on the certified list is less than three (3) persons, the Board of
Commissioners may decline to make any appointment and order the establishment of a new list of
eligible candidates so that the Commission may certify a list of three (3) persons.

C The Board of Commissioners may object to one (1) or more of the persons certified
for the reasons set forth in Rule 6.10 et. seq. of these Rules and Regulations. Ifa person to whom the
Board of Commissioners objects fails to timely exercise his or her rights of appeal under Rule 6.11,
or if the Commission declines to uphold the person's appeal, the Commission shall strike the name
of that person from the eligibility list and certify the next highest name.

D, Where the Board of Commissioners notifics the Commission that there is more than
one (1) position of the same rank to be filled, the following procedure shall be used. The
Commission shall certify from the eligibility list a number of the names of the highest ranked
Applicants equal to the number of positions to be filled, plus the next two (2). Appointment for cach

20



position shall be made from the names of the three (3) highest ranking persons on the list. As each
position is filled, the name of the appointed Applicant shall be removed from the list, and the name of
the next highest ranking person on the list shall be moved up to third place on the list for
consideration for appointment to the next position to be filled.

8.03 Promotions.

Promotions in the Police Department shall be based on merit to be ascertained by
examinations to be prescribed by the Commission. All questions relative to promotions shall be
practical in character and such as will fairly test the merit and fitness of persons seeking promotion.
The Board of Commissioners shall notify the Commission of a vacancy on the Police Department
which is to be filled by promotion and shall request the certification of an eligibility list. The
Commission shall certify for each vacancy the names of the three persons on the eligibility list who
have received the highest average in the last promotion examination held within a period of two (2)
years preceding the date of the request for the eligibility list. If three names are not available, the
Commission shall certify the names remaining on the eligibility list. The Board of Commissioners
shall make an appointment from the names certified based solely on the merit and fitness of the
candidate unless the Board of Commissioners makes objections to the Commission regarding any
person on the eligibility list for the reasons set forth in Rule 6.10 of these Rules and Regulations.
The Board of Commissioners shall have the power to determine in cach instance whether an
increase in salary shall constitute a promotion.

8.04 YVeteran's Preference Points in Appointment.

Pursuant to Section 4(b) of the Veteran's Preference Act, 51 Pa.C.S. Subsection 7104(b), any
Applicant for the position of patrol officer who qualifies as a "soldier" under the Act, and whose
name appears among the top three (3) names certified (or less where there are less than three
(3) names certified), shall be oftered appointment by the Board of Commissioners, regardless of the
ranking of the Applicant among the top three (3) names. In the event there is more than one (1) such
"soldier" on the list of names certified, then the Board of Commissioners shall offer employment to
one of such soldiers. Pursuant to the Veteran's Preference Act, 51 Pa.C.S. § 7104(c), any Applicant
for the position of police officer who qualifies as a "soldier" under the Act, and whose name appears
on the eligibility list, may be offered appointment by the Board of Commissioners, regardless of the
ranking of the Applicant on the list.

8.05 Promotional Appointments

As has been held in Hoffman v. Township of Whitehall, 544 Pa499; 677 A.2d 1200 (1996),
inclusion of veterans preference points with respect to promotional appointments s
unconstitutional, and therefore, no such preference shall apply regarding promotions.

8.06 Appointment of Chief of Police.

In the case of a vacancy in the office of Chief of Police, the Board of Commissioners may
nominate a person or persons for consideration by the Civil Service Commission. It shall thereupon

21






supervision or direction of a physician, as may be required by law, who is licensed:

(1) as a physician assistant pursuant to the act of December 20, 1985 (P.L. 457, No.
1'12) known as the “Medical Practice Act of 1985, or the act of October 5, 1978 (P.L. 1109, No.
261), known as the “Osteopathic Medical Practice Act™; or

(2) as a certified registered nurse practitioner pursuant to the act of May 22, 1951 (P.L.
317, No. 69), known as the “The Professional Nursing Law.”

8.08 Probationary Period.

Every appointee satisfying all the conditions for appointment shall serve a twelve (12) month
probationary period, which shall commence with the date on which the appointee is both: (a) eligible
to perform official duties (including the completion of any required training under Act 120 and
receipt of a certification number from the Municipal Police Officers' Education and Training
Commission, and the taking of the oath of office); and (b) actually performs official duties. During
the probationary period, a probationer in the position of patrol officer may be dismissed, and a
probationer in a promotional position may be returned to his or her previous rank, only for cause for
the reasons set forth in Rule 6.10 or 9.01(A), infra, which restates Section 637 of the First Class
Township Code or because of incapacity for duty due to the use of alcohol or drugs. However, if at
the close of the twelve (12) month probationary period, the Board of Commissioners determines that
the conduct or fitness of the probationer has not been satisfactory to the Board of Commissioners,
the probationer shall be given written notice, as soon as practicable upon the conclusion of the twelve
(12) month probationary period, that the probationer will not receive a permanent appointment.
Alternatively, at the recommendation of the Chief of Police, the probationary period may be
extended. At that time, the employment of a probationer in the position of patrol officer shall end,
and a promoted officer shall return to such officer's previous rank. Any probationer who is not given
notice that such probationer's performance has been unsatisfactory, shall receive a permanent
appointment. Any probationer who is given notice that the probationer will not receive a permanent
appointment has no rights of appeal under these Rules and Regulations.

8.09 Seniority.
Seniority shall be established by the order of appointment by the Board of Commissioners.
8.10 Provisional Appointments.

Whenever there are urgent reasons for the filling of a vacancy in any position in the Police
Department and there are no names on the eligibility list for such appointment, the Board of
Commissions may nominate a person for consideration by the Commission for non-competitive
examination and if such nominee shall be certified by the Commission as qualified after such non-
competitive examination he/she may be appointed provisionally to fill such vacancy. It shall
thereupon become the duty of the Commission within three weeks of such appointment to hold a
competitive examination and certify a list of eligible candidates and a regular appointment shall
then be made from the names or names submitted by the Commission: Provided, however, that
nothing herein contained shall prevent the appointment without examination of persons
temporarily as police officers in cases of riot or other emergency or appointments of operators of

23



fire apparatus in emergency cases.

SECTION 9. SUSPENSIONS. REMOVALS AND REDUCTIONS IN RANK.
9.01 Grounds for Disciplinary Action.

A No person appointed to a position as a police officer pursuant to these Rules and
Regulations may be suspended without pay or removed and no person promoted in rank pursuant
to these Rules and Regulations may be reduced in rank except for the following reasons:

. Physical or mental disability affecting the police officer's ability to
continuc in service, in which case the police officer shall reccive an
honorable discharge from service;

[NS)

Neglect or violation of any official duty;

[U'S]

Violation of any law of this Commonwealth which provides that such
violation constitutes a misdemeanor or felony;

4. Inefficiency, neglect, intemperance, disobedience of orders or conduct
unbecoming a police officer;

5. Intoxication while on duty; or

6.  Engaging, participating, or conducting any political activity or clection
campaign in Pocono Township other than the police officer's exercise of the
right of suffrage.

B, No police officer shall be removed for any reason which constitutes unlawful
discrimination, including without limitation, discrimination on the basis of race, religion, color,

national origin, sexual orientation, gender, age, marital status or non-job related physical or mental
handicap or disability.

C. A written statement of any charges made against any police officer so employed shall

be furnished to the police officer within five (5) days after those charges are adopted by the Board
of Commissioners and are filed with the Commission.

D. A reduction in rank under these Rules and Regulations applies only to situations where

a police officer is demoted from a promotional position obtained pursuant to the requirements of
these Rules and Regulations.

9.02 Furloughs and Change in Emplovment Status.

If for reasons of cconomy or other reasons it shall be deemed necessary by the Township to

reduce the number of paid employees of the Police Department, then the Township shall apply the
following procedure:

24



A If there are any employees eligible for retirement under the terms of any retirement or
pension law, then such reduction in numbers shall be made by retirement if the party to be retired
exceeds the maximum age as defined in the act of October 27, 1955 (P.L. 744, No. 222), known as
the “Pennsylvania Human Relations Act.

B If the number of paid employces in the Police Department cligible to retire is
insufficient to effect the necessary reduction in numbers or if there are no persons eligible to retire
or if no retirement or pension fund exists, then the reduction shall be effected by furloughing the
person or persons, including probationers, last appointed to the Department. Such removal shall be
accomplished by furloughing in numerical order commencing with the person last appointed until
such reduction shall have been accomplished. In the event the Police Department staff shall be
increased, the employees furloughed shall be reinstated in the order of their seniority in the service.
The provisions of this paragraph as to reductions in force shall not apply to any chief of police. See
also the provisions of the Collective Bargaining Agreement regarding reduction of force.

9.03 Notice of Suspension. Removal or Reduction in Rank.

Whenever a police officer is suspended without pay. removed from office, or reduced in rank,
the specific charges warranting such action shall be stated in writing by the Board of Commissioners.
The charges shall be stated clearly and in sufficient detail to enable the officer to understand the
charges against the officer and to allow the officer an opportunity to respond to those charges. The
charges shall specify the section of the law or regulation that provides the basis for the disciplinary
action as well as an explanation of the factual circumstances upon which the Board of Commissioners
relied in finding a violation of such law or regulation. The charges shall notify the officer of the
officer's appeal rights under Rule 9.04, of these Rules and Regulations. The chargesshall be delivered
to the officer and delivered to the members of the Civil Service Commission.

9.04 Hearings on Suspension. Removal. and Reduction in Rank.

A Except as provided in subparagraph D, a police officer who has been suspended without
pay, removed from office, or reduced in rank may appeal the decision of the Board of Commissioners
by written notice to the Secretary of the Commission at the Pocono Township Municipal Building,
112 Township Drive, Tannersville, PA 18372 requesting a hearing. This request shall be delivered to
the Commission within ten (10) days after the officer has received electronic mailed notice of the
discipline. This request shall specify whether the officer wishes to have a public or a private hearing
before the Commission. In the absence of a request for a private hearing, the hearing will be
advertised and conducted within a reasonable period of time as a public hearing. The officer may
make written answers to any charges filed against such officer not later than the date fixed for the
hearing. Failure of the officer to provide written answers to any of the charges shall not be deemed
an admission by the officer.

B. The Commission shall, upon receipt of an officer's timely written request, schedule a
hearing within a reasonable period of time. At any such hearing, the officer against whom the
charges have been made may be present and represented by counsel, and may call witnesses and
present testimony and documentation in such officer's defense. The Township may also be

25



represented by counsel, and may call witnesses and present evidence as is necessary to support the
charges. A stenographic record of all testimony shall be taken at every hearing and preserved by the
Commission. In the event the charges are dismissed, the record shall be sealed and not be available
for public inspection.

C. In conducting the hearing, the Commission's standard of review shall be to determine
whether sufficient evidence has been presented to support the statutory reason for the disciplinary
action. If the Commission finds that sufficient evidence has been introduced to support the charge,
the Commission shall not modify the penalty imposed by the Board of Commissioners unless it finds
that the penalty imposed was arbitrary, discriminatory or an abuse of discretion. In considering the
appropriateness of the discipline, the Commission shall not substitute its judgment for that of the
Board of Commissioners. The Commission may request post-hearing briefs, and shall issue a written
decision, a copy of which decision shall by electronic mailing be transmitted to the officer, which
decision shall contain specific findings of fact and conclusions of law within sixty (60) days of
receipt of the hearing transcript. Where no transcript is requested, the sixty (60) day period shall
commence at the conclusion of the hearing.

D.  The Board of Commissioners, or the chief of police when the Board of Commissioners
is not in session, may suspend any such person without pay pending the determination of the charges
against him/her, but in the event the Commission fails to uphold the charges, then the person sought
to be suspended, removed or demoted shall be reinstated with full pay for the period during which
he/she was suspended, removed or demoted, and no charges shall be officially recorded against
his/her record.

E The right to a hearing does not extend to the non-retention by the Board of
Commissioners of a probationer in the position of patrol officer, or the return by the Board of
Commissioners of a probationer in a promotional position to the officer's previous rank, at the close
of the probationary period. Furthermore, the right to a hearing does not apply to any police officer
subject to a reprimand or disciplinary action which does not result in a suspension with loss of pay,
removal from office, or reduction in rank.

9.05 Hearing Procedure.

A, All testimony shall be given under oath administered by the Chairperson or, in the
absence of the Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson. The Commission shall have power to issuc
subpoenas as set forth in Rule 3.11. The hearing shall be open to the public unless, at the time the
hearing is requested by the officer, the officer requests a closed hearing.

B. 1If the Commission sustains the charges, the officer who is suspended without pay,
removed from office, or reduced in rank may file an appeal with the Court of Common Pleas of
Monroe County, Pennsylvania within thirty (30) days from the date of entry by the Commission of its
final order. No order of suspension without pay shall be for a period longer than one (1) year. In the
event that the Commission fails to uphold the charges, then the officer sought to be suspended
without pay, removed from office, or reduced in rank shall be reinstated with full pay for the period
of the suspension, removal from office, or reduction in rank, and no charges related to the
suspension, removal from office, or reduction in rank shall be officially received.

26



SECTION 10. RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION OF
POCONO TOWNSHIP. MONROE COUNTY. PENNSYLVANIA APPLICABLE TO THE

LATERAL TRANSFER OF POLICE OFFICERS SEEKING INCLUSION AS MEMBERS OF

THE POLICE DEPARTMENT OF POCONO TOWNSHIP

10.1

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(©)

®

(8

INTRODUCTION

The Commissioners of Pocono Township are cognizant of the procedural mandates of 53 Pa. Stat Section
55625 et seq which provide an orderly and unbiased procedure for the hiring by competitive examination
of certain public servants, such as municipal police officers. In compliance therewith, Pocono Township
has promulgated its “Civil Service Rules and Regulations” to assure that the hiring of Township Police
Officers occurs in accordance with the above state-wide mandates.

On occasion, despite its due diligence and best efforts, the Township has experienced an inability to meet
the hiring needs of its Police Department, and as a result, the Police Department has at times functioned
with less than a full complement of “Municipal Police Officers’ Education and Training Act” (hereinafter
referred to as MPOETC) certified police officers.

In order to promote and foster the hiring of qualified police officers, the Township may encourage the
lateral transfer of qualified police officers from other municipalities without the need to engage in all of the
usual Civil Service vetting procedures.

The Pocono Township Police Department of Monroe County, located in the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania (hereinafter sometimes referred to as the “Department” or the “PTPD”) has been authorized
by the Commissioners of Pocono Township to encourage the recruitment of Police Officers who presently
serve as members of police departments protecting other municipalities.

Police Officers who presently serve as members of other police departments and who indicate a desire to
transition to and become active members of the Pocono Township Police Department constitute potential
“Lateral Transferees” who because of their expertise as police officers, may qualify for inclusion as
members of the Department without the need to comply with all of the Civil Service Rules applicable to
potential candidates with no prior police experience.

The present Addenda to the Civil Service Rules, adopted by the Township of Pocono on the day of

, 2025, are applicable solely to the application process pertaining to Lateral Transferees secking
consideration as members of the Department.

Should these Addenda be found to be in conflict with the Civil Service Rules as adopted and presently
utilized by the Township, these Addenda shall supersede and be controlling solely with regard to the
consideration of Lateral Transferee Applicants (hereinafter sometimes referred to as “LTA”) for possible
inclusion as Members of the Department.

10.2 THE PROCEDURE TO BE UTILIZED APPLICABLE TO LATERAL TRANSFEREES SEEKING TO BE
CONSIDERED FOR INCLUSION AS A POLICE OFFICER IN THE POCONO TOWNSHIP POLICE
DEPARTMENT.

A

With regard to Section 4, the employment application form to be submitted by a Lateral Transferee
Applicant may differ from the application form utilized by applicants who are not seeking employment
predicated upon their status as a LTA. Specifically, the LTA application may include questions focusing
upon the LTA’s present employment status, experience as a MPOETC certified police officer, areas of

21



expertise as a police officer, reasons for seeking a lateral transfer to the Pocono Township Police
Department (hereinafter sometimes referred to as the “PTPD”), and such other questions as may be
deemed appropriate by the Pocono Township Chief of Police.

B. With regard to Rule 7.01, the LTA will not be required to participate in a competitive written examination.
The procedure regarding the recording, filing, and protocols followed by Pocono Township and the PTPD
applicable to LTA applications shall consist at a minimum of the following:

h.  Applications applicable to LTAs shall be received online, and must be received before the deadline for
receiving such applications has passed. The Commission or the PTPD will confirm on line with the
LTA that the application has been received.

1i. Any application containing material errors or omissions may, at the discretion of the Commission, be
returned by electronic mailing to the LTA for correction prior to the deadline for filing applications. If
a corrected application is again submitted, the Commission or the PTPD will upon resubmission
maintain ten days within which to advise the LTA whether the resubmitted application is deemed
“complete” and appropriate for Township review.

iii. If the resubmitted application is again deemed to be incomplete, the LTA shall be so advised, and the
application process shall, at the discretion of the Chief of Police, be concluded.

iv. Once a timely application is deemed to be complete, an Interview shall be scheduled with the LTA
who shall be required to physically appear as scheduled at the Pocono Township Municipal Office in
order to engage in a verbal Interview to be conducted by members of the Township Command Staff.

v. The Interview shall be conducted on a “pass/fail” basis.

vi. Within ten days of completion of the Interview, the LTA shall be given written notice through the
Township’s application website as to whether the LTA has passed or failed the Interview. More than
one Interview may be required by the Commission and/or the PTPD.

vii. If the LTA passes the Interview, the LTA will be advised by the Township to contact the Township
Background Investigator, in order that there may commence a Background Investigation of the LTA.
Prior to commencement of the Background Investigation, the LTA will be required to execute a
“Release” granting unto the PTPD and Pocono Township the unrestricted authority to conduct a
background investigation of the LTA, which shall include, but is not necessarily limited, to a review of
the LTA’s personal and employment data.

C. The Township shall then commence its background investigation. At the discretion of the Chief of
Police, the LTA may be required as part of the investigation to undergo:

(a) a medical examination;

(b) a psychological examination;

(c) apolygraph examination;

(d) drug screening evaluation;

(e) aphysical agility test to confirm that the LTA maintains the ability now and during the period of
employment to carry out the duties of a full-time police officer serving as a member of the PTPD.

D. Should the LTA for any reason fail any portion of the background investigation, the LTA shall receive

notice of such failure within thirty days of completion of the background investigation, whereupon the
application process would be terminated.

28



E  Ifthe LTA passes all of the elements of the background investigation, the LTA would, contingent upon
the manpower and scheduling needs of the PTPD, be sworn in as a member of the PTPD, and would
commence a one year probationary period as a “patrol officer”. During the period of probation, the LTA
would undergo field training as mandated by the Chief of Police.

F. Nothing herein shall preclude an out-of-state LTA from applying for employment with the PTPD. Such an

applicant shall be required to comply with any additional application prerequisites as may be mandated by
the Chief of Police.

G With regard to Rule 5.02, the language of which shall remain intact, there shall be added the following
sentence that is applicable to LTAs: “In state LTAs shall at time of application submission possess a
current MPOETC Act certification.”

H  With regard to Rules 7.01, 7.02, 7.05, 7.06, 7.07, and 8.01, the Order, Weighing, and Timing of
Examinations, and the compilation of Eligibility Lists shall not apply to LTAs, who shall in the alternative
proceed in the application process as outlined in the present Addenda.

I With regard to Rule 5.03, the language of which shall remain intact, there shall be added the following
sentence that is applicable to “Sponsorship Candidates” attending a Police Academy:

“Should a Candidate for Sponsorship fail to comply with the conditional rules of employment, the
candidate will be responsible for reimbursement to the Township of those costs expended by the Township
applicable to Police Academy expenses.”

These Rules and their appended Addenda, having been promulgated pursuant to Rule 3.08 by the
Civil Service Commission of Pocono Township, Monroe County, and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
are hereby adopted by the Commissioners of the said Township this day of
, 2025.

29




















































































TEMPORARY ACCESS AND CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

THIS TEMPORARY ACCESS AND CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT (the

“Agreement”) is made this day of , 2025, by and between POCONO
HERITAGE LAND TRUST, (the “GRANTOR”) and the TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, a

municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the Commonwealth of

Pennsylvania (the “TOWNSHIP").

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, GRANTOR is the owner in fee simple of a certain parcel of land situated in
Pocono Township, Monroe County, Pennsylvania, known as Monroe County Tax Parcel No.
12.94360 (the “Premises”); and

WHEREAS, the TOWNSHIP is installing sanitary sewer lines on the Premises (the
“Project™); and

WHEREAS, in order to perform the construction of the sanitary sewer lines, the
TOWNSHIP requires a temporary access and construction easement on GRANTOR’s Premises as
more fully set forth in Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B”, attached hereto and made a part hereof (the
“Easement”).

NOW, THEREFORE, for value received and intending to be legally bound, the
GRANTOR consents and agrees as follows:

1. All “WHEREAS?” clauses are hereby incorporated by reference.

2. The GRANTOR hereby consents to and grants to the TOWNSHIP, its agents,
contractors, subcontractors and representatives a temporary access and construction easement

described in Exhibit “A” and depicted in Exhibit “B”, subject to the terms and conditions set forth

herein.




































COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA )

) ss:
COUNTY OF )
On this day of , 2025, before me, the undersigned officer,
personally appeared , acknowledged himself/herself to be
the of POCONO HERITAGE LAND TRUST, and acknowledged that

he/she was authorized to execute the foregoing instrument on behalf of First National Bank of
Pennsylvania for the purposes therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal.

NOTARY PUBLIC
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA )
) ss:
COUNTY OF MONROE )
On this day of , 2025, before me, the undersigned officer,

personally appeared RICHARD WIELEBINSKI, who acknowledged himself to be the President
of the Board of Commissioners of the Township of Pocono, and that he as such President of the
Board of Commissioners, being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the

purposes therein contained by signing the name of the corporation by himself as the President of the
Board of Commissioners.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal.

NOTARY PUBLIC







































	9-15-25_BOC_Agenda.pdf
	doc04601520250911133232
	doc04601720250911133350

